From: Young, Be UTC

To: amber.stoffels@up.com; Petersen, Nicholas

Subject: TR-240793 - Notice of UTC Petition - Please respond by 11/12/2024
Date: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 3:28:00 PM

Attachments: TR-240793 - Notice of Petition (Olympia Avenue at Adams Street).pdf

240793-Petition to Modify Warning Devices-Olympia-Signed.pdf
240793-Enaineering Study for At Grade Crossings at Olympia Ave and Thurston Ave.pdf

Importance: High

Please see the attached information related to a petition to modify warning devices filed by the
City of Olympia. Please respond via electronic filing by 11/12/2024.

Betty Young

Rail Operations Manager, Transportation Safety
(360) 292-5470 — Cell

betty.young@utc.wa.gov

wWww.utc.wa.gov
Pronouns: she/her/hers
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STATE OF WASHINGTON

UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION
621 Woodland Square Loop S.E. e Lacey, Washington 98503
P.O. Box 47250 e Olympia, Washington 98504-7250
(360) 664-1160 e TTY (360) 586-8203

Oct. 23, 2024

Amber Stoffels

Manager of Industry and Public Projects
Union Pacific Railroad

1400 W. 52nd Avenue, Unit 1259
Denver, CO 80221

Sent via email to (Amber.stoffels@up.com)

RE: TR-240793 — Petition to Modify Warning Devices at Olympia Avenue at Adams
Street (USDOT 807853T)

Dear Ms. Stoffels:
On Oct. 21, 2024, the City of Olympia (City) filed a petition with the Washington Ultilities and
Transportation Commission (UTC) seeking approval to modify warning devices at Olympia

Avenue at Adams Street, identified as USDOT 807853T.

The purpose of this letter is to provide notice to Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) that it must
respond with its position related to this petition within 20 days of the date of this letter.

Please review the enclosed petition and respond by Nov. 12, 2024. Y our response options
include:

e Support the petition — Sign Section 12 — Cost Apportionment and complete Section 13 —
Waiver of Hearing by Respondent, which serves as Union Pacific’s consent for the UTC

to issue an order without further notice or hearing, and submit it to the UTC.

OR,

Respect. Professionalism. Integrity. Accountability.
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Amber Stoffels
Oct. 23, 2024
Page 2

e Do not support the petition — Provide a written response including Union Pacific’s
reasons for not supporting the petition, whether Union Pacific believes a hearing is
necessary to resolve the issues, or suggestions for other courses of action, such as further
discussion prior to going to hearing.

Please provide your written response through the UTC’s electronic filing form by Nov. 12, 2024.
Please reference UTC Docket TR-240793 and include a cover letter.

If you have questions, please contact Betty Young, Rail Operations Manager, at
betty.young@utc.wa.gov.

Sincerely,
Digitally signed by
W Katherine Hunter
Date: 2024.10.23
14:38:26 -07'00'
Kathy Hunter
Director, Transportation Safety

Enclosures

cc: Jeff Johnstone, City of Olympia (without enclosures)
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Amber Stoffels
Oct. 23, 2024
Page 3

If you have questions, please contact Tyler Whitcomb, Transportation Planning Specialist, at
tyler.whitcomb@utc.wa.gov or (564) 669-0943.

Sincerely,

Kathy Hunter
Director, Transportation Safety

Enclosures

cc: Connie Raezer, WSDOT (without enclosures)
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WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

City Of Olympia
Petitioner,

VS.

Union Pacific Railroad Company
Respondent

DOCKET NO. TR-
PETITION TO MODIFY WARNING

DEVICES AT A HIGHWAY-
RAILROAD GRADE CROSSING

uspoT: 807853T

By filing this petition with the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
(UTC), the Petitioner alleges that public safety requires the modification of a highway-

rail grade crossing under RCW 81.53.261.

Section 1 — Petitioner’s Information

City Of Olympia
Petitioner

Jeff Johnstone %
Signature

601 4th Ave East
Street Address

Olympia, WA 98507
City, State and Zip Code

PO Box 1967 Olympia WA 98507
Mailing Address, if different than the street address

Jeff Johnstone
Contact Person Name & Signature

360-753-8290 jjohnsto@ci.olympia.wa.us
Contact Phone Number and Email

Revised 04/2023 1
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Section 2 — Respondent’s Information

Union Pacific Railroad Company
Respondent

1180 W 52ND Ave
Street Address

Denver, CO 80221-1566
City, State and Zip Code

Mailing Address, if different than the street address

Amber Stoffels
Contact Person Name

720-243-0759 amber.stoffels@up.com
Contact Phone Number and Email

Section 3 — Crossing Location

1. Existing highway/roadway: Olympia Ave @ Adams St
2. Existing railroad: Union Pacific Railroad

3. USDOT Crossing No.:/807853T

4. GPS location: |47.046863-122.898252

5. Railroad mile post (nearest tenth):| 7. 562

6. City:| Olympia County:| Thurston

Revised 04/2023






Section 4 — Highway Information

1. Name of highway: Olympia Ave and Adams St

2. Road authority: City of Olympia

3. Average annual daily traffic (AADT): 1,000

4. Number of lanes: 2

5. Roadway speed: 25

6. Is the crossing part of an established truck route? Yes (] No
7. If so, trucks are what percent of total daily traffic?

8. Is the crossing part of an established school bus route? Yes [] No
9. If so, how many school buses travel over the crossing each day?

10. Describe any changes to the information in 1 through 7, above, expected within ten years:

None

11. What is the available sight distance from the stop bar (or 25 feet from the tracks if no stop bar)
on both approaches to the crossing?

Ranges from 150 to 400 feet

12. If the sight distance is less than 400 feet, describe the structures, roadway or track curvature,
visual obstacles or other characteristics that limit sight distance:

Grade crossing occurs at an intersection through an urbanized area. Buildings, fences,
and parkings lots all contribute to sight distances under 400 feet.

Revised 04/2023






Section 5 — Railroad Information

1. Railroad company: Union Pacific Railroad Company

2. Type of railroad at crossing: Common Carrier Logging |[J Industrial
Passenger Excursion
3. Type of tracks at crossing: Main Line (] Siding or Spur

4. Number of tracks at crossing: 1
5. Average daily train traffic, freight: 3

Authorized freight train speed: 10 Operated freight train speed: 10
6. Average daily train traffic, passenger:|Q

Authorized passenger train speed: 0 Operated passenger train speed:|Q

7. Describe any changes to the information in 1 through 4, above, expected within ten years:
None known

Revised 04/2023






Section 6 — Current Warning Devices

Provide a complete description of the warning devices currently located at the crossing (vehicle
and pedestrian), including signs, gates, lights, train detection circuitry, and any other warning

devices.

The Olympia and Adams intersection, crossbuck assemblies are present on all four legs,
with stop signs for northbound and southbound traffic, and yield signs for eastbound and

westbound traffic.

Section 7 — Description of Proposed Changes

Describe in detail the number and type of proposed automatic signals (vehicle and pedestrian),
gates, other warning devices, and/or changes to train detection circuitry. (RCW 81.53.271)
Please describe any other proposed changes at the crossing, including changes to the crossing
surface, signage, pavement markings, etc. If sidewalks are being installed, please provide
information on who will maintain them. Attach additional information sheets, if needed.

The yield signs on the crossbuck assemblies on Olympia Ave approaching Adams St
should be immediately replaced with stop signs.

Revised 04/2023
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Section 8 — Illustration of Crossing

Attach a detailed diagram, design drawing, map, or other illustration showing the current and
proposed layout of the road, crossing surface, and railway in the vicinity of the crossing,
including shoulders, sidewalks, lanes of travel, bike lanes, warning devices, pavement markings
and any other applicable crossing conditions.

Section 9 — Description of Public Safety Need

Describe and support the public safety need for the proposed changes. (RCW 81.53.261)

Due to the proximity of the grade rail crossing to the intersections in question, the traffic
control devices on the crossbuck assemblies also serve as traffic control for the
intersections. The current conditions pose a significant safety risk, causing driver
confusion about the right of way when approaching the intersections, and are in direct
conflict with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).

Section 10 — Approximate Cost of Installation and Related Work

Provide the approximate cost of installation and related work for the proposed changes to
signals and/or warning devices. (RCW 81.53.271)

$900

Section 11 — Approximate Cost of Annual Maintenance

Provide the approximate cost of annual maintenance for the signals and/or warning
devices. (RCW 81.53.271)

No change over what currently exists.

Revised 04/2023 6
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Section 12 — Cost Apportionment

If the commission directs the installation of or changes to the warning devices requested in this
petition, it will apportion installation and maintenance costs in accordance with the applicable
statutes. (RCW 81.53.261-295)

Interested parties may instead enter into an agreement providing for the installation of signals or
other warning devices or for the apportionment of the cost of installation and maintenance.
(RCW 81.53.261) If the parties to this petition have reached an agreement related to
apportionment of costs, please sign here to confirm:

Petitioner Signature: Respondent Signature:

Revised 04/2023 7
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Section 13 — Waiver of Hearing by Respondent

Waiver of Hearing

The undersigned represents the Respondent in the petition to modify highway-rail grade crossing
warning devices at the following crossing.

USDOT Crossing No. 807853T

We have investigated the conditions at the crossing. We are satisfied the conditions are the same
as described by the Petitioner in this docket. We agree the warning devices should be modified
and consent to a decision by the commission without a hearing.

Dated at , Washington, onthe/1 | day of selectmonth |2023.

Printed name of Respondent

Signature of Respondent’s Representative

Title

Phone Number

Email Address

Mailing address

Revised 04/2023 8






Checklist prior to submitting petition:

v
v

v

Ensure all petition fields are completed.
Ensure parties sign Section 12 regarding any Cost Apportionment agreement, if
applicable.
Obtain signature on Waiver of Hearing (Section 13). If respondent fails to sign Waiver,
advise UTC staff upon submission.
Attach copies of:

o Illustration of crossing (described in Section 8).

0 Any other relevant documents to support the petition, including but not limited to

support of public need, project information, etc.

Submitting the petition: To officially file the petition, send the petition form and
supporting documents via Efiling.

Questions: For questions, please contact:

Mike Turcott Tyler Whitcomb

Transportation Planning Specialist Transportation Planning Specialist
mike.turcott@utc.wa.gov tyler.whitcomb@utc.wa.gov

(360) 764-0572 (564) 669-0943

Revised 04/2023 9
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Olympia

EVALUATION OF AT GRADE RAIL CROSSING AT OLYMPIA AVE AND ADAMS
ST AND THURSTON AVE AND FRANKLIN ST

September 24, 2024

JOSEPH REED JONES, PE
PUBLIC WORKS TRANSPORTATION PROJECT ENGINEER





INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This evaluation focuses on two railroad grade crossings that intersect diagonally through two four-
way intersections in the City of Olympia (refer to Figures 1, 2, 3, and 4). The intersections in
question are located at Olympia Ave and Adams St, and Thurston Ave and Franklin St. The
associated railroad crossing numbers at these intersections are USDOT 807853T, 807857V, and
807858C.

Currently, at the Olympia and Adams intersection, crossbuck assemblies are present on all four
legs, with stop signs for northbound and southbound traffic, and yield signs for eastbound and
westbound traffic. The Thurston and Franklin intersection is equipped with crossbuck assemblies
on the east, west, and south legs, including a stop sign for northbound traffic and yield signs for
eastbound and westbound traffic. Additionally, the City of Olympia has installed a stop sign for
southbound traffic that does not include a crossbuck due to the railway configuration. The
crossbuck with yield sign for southbound traffic occurs further north from the intersection and does
not influence the intersections traffic control.

In May 2024, the City of Olympia formally contacted Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) to request the
replacement of the yield signs with stop signs at both intersections, to comply with the Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) requirements. UPRR’s response indicated that the City
must submit a formal inquiry along with a preliminary engineering/reimbursement agreement,
estimating a cost of $30,000, as outlined in UPRR Public Project Manual Table 11.1.

Given the MUTCD non-compliance of the current signage, the City has decided to file a petition with
the UTC, providing evidence to support the need for stop signs at these grade crossings in place of
the existing yield signs.

GUIDANCE
MUTCD section 8B.03 paragraph 3:

“As a minimum, one Crossbuck sign shall be used on each highway approach to every highway-rail
grade crossing, alone or in combination with other traffic control devices.”

MUTCD section 8B.04 paragraph 1:

“A Crossbuck Assembly shall consist of a Crossbuck (R15-1) sign, and Number of Tracks (R15-2P)
plaque if two or more tracks are present, that complies with the provision of Section 8B.03, and
eithera YIELD (R1-2) or STOP (R1-1) sign installed on the same support, except as provided in
Paragraph 10 of this Section. YIELD or STOP signs used at passive grade crossings shall be installed
in compliance with the provisions of Section 2B.18, and Figures 8B-2 and 8B-3.”

MUTCD section 8B.04 paragraph 5:

“AYIELD sign shall be the default traffic control device for Crossbuck Assemblies on all highway
approaches to passive grade crossing unless an engineering study performed by the regulatory
agency or highway authority having jurisdiction over the roadway approach determines that a STOP
sign is appropriate.”





MUTCD section 2B.06 paragraph 9:

“STOP signs and YIELD signs shall not be installed on different approaches to the same
unsignalized intersection if those approaches conflict with or oppose each other, except as
provided for in Items A and B in Paragraph 3 of Section 2B.10.”

MUTCD section 2B.10 paragraph 4:

“The YIELD signs should be installed on opposing minor-street approaches (for a four-leg
intersection) or on the minor-street approach (for a three-leg intersection). When two intersecting
roadways have relatively equal volumes, speeds, and other characteristics, yield control should be
installed on the approach that conflicts the most with established pedestrian crossing activity,
school walking routes, or bicycle crossing activity.”

MUTCD section 2B.10 paragraph 6:

“YIELD signs shall not be placed on all the approaches to an intersection, except at roundabouts.”

EVALUATION AND CONCLUSIONS

Due to the proximity of the grade rail crossing to the intersections in question, the traffic control
devices on the crossbuck assemblies also serve as traffic control for the intersections. The current
conditions pose a significant safety risk, causing driver confusion about the right of way when
approaching the intersections, and are in direct conflict with several MUTCD sections cited above.

Given that all four legs at Olympia and Adams and three of the four legs at Thurston and Franklin
have crossbuck assemblies, the only traffic control device that complies with MUTCD standards for
these intersections is an all way stop.

The yield signs on the crossbuck assemblies at Olympia Ave approaching Adams St and on
Thurston Ave approaching Franklin St should be immediately replaced with stop signs. No further
evaluation of all way stop warrants are needed.





FIGURE 1:
EXISTING LAYOUT OF OLYMPIA AVE AND ADAMS ST INTERSECTION
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The City of Olympia and its personnel cannot assure the accuracy, completeness, reliability or suitability of this information for any particular purpose. The parcels, right-of-ways, utilities and structures depicted hereon are based on
record information and aerial photos only. It is recommended the recipient and or user field verify all information prior to use. The use of this data for purposes other than those for which they were created may yield inaccurate or

misleading results. The recipient may not assert any proprietary right to this information. The City of Olympia and its personnel neither accept or assume any liability or responsibility, whatsoever, for any activity involving this information
with respect to lost profits, lost savings or any other consequential damages.






FIGURE 2:
EXISTING LAYOUT OF THURSTON AVE AND FRANKLIN ST INTERSECTION
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






FIGURE 3:
PHOTOS OF OLYMPIA AVE AND
ADAMS ST INTERSECTION

EAST LEG [l = WEST LEG
| (LOOKING WEST) [ (LOOKING EAST)

SOUTHLEG [ g NORTH
(LOOKING NORTH) - (LOOKING SOUTH)






FIGURE 4:
PHOTOS OF THURSTON AVE AND
FRANKLIN ST INTERSECTION
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